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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Aujas Networks Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Ind AS financial statements of Aujas Networks Private Limited (“the Company™),
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2019, the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity and statement of cash tlows for the year
then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2019, and

loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements™ section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Directors Report. but does not include the
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements. our responsibility is to read the other
information and. in doing so. consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially

misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
gol'this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing 1o report in this regard.
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B S R & Associates LLP

Aujas Networks Private Limited
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (continued)

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs, loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if. individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements. whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error.
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override

‘} of internal control.
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Aujas Networks Private Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (continued)
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements (continued)

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or. if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books:

(¢) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;
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Aujas Networks Private Limited
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT (continued)

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act:

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B”;

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 2.33 to the Ind AS financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company; and

iv.  The disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings
in specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016
have not been made in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial
year ended 31 March 2019.

for BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 101248W/W-100022

e

Sagar Lulla
Partner
Membership number: 137645

Bengaluru

30 April 2019
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Aujas Networks Private Limited

Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019, we report that:

1 ()
(b)
(c)

(i1)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii) (a)

4

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which
fixed assets are verified every year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The Company does not own any immovable properties. Accordingly, paragraph 3(i)(c) of the
Order is not applicable.

The Company is a service company, primarily rendering data security management services.
Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). Thus, paragraph 3(iii) (a) to (c) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company has not advanced any loan, including any loan represented by book debt to any
of its Directors or to any other person in whom the director is interested or not given any
guarantee or not provided any security in connection with any loan taken by him or such person.
The Company has not made investment through more than two layers of investment companies.
Also the Company has not given loan, guarantee or provide security in connection with a loan,
whether directly or indirectly to any person or other body corporate. Accordingly, paragraph
3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section
148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect
of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income-tax, sales tax, value added tax,
Service tax, Goods and Service tax. cess and other material statutory dues have generally been
regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities though
there has been a slight delay in a few cases. As explained to us, the Company did not have any
dues on account of employees’ state insurance, duty of customs and duty of excise.

According to the information and explanations given to us. no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund. income tax, sales tax, value added tax. service tax, Goods and Service
tax, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2019 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.
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Annexure — A to the Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material dues of income

tax, sales tax, Goods and Service tax, service tax and value added tax which have not been
deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any disputes except for the following:

Name of the

Nature of dues

Amount (INR)

Period to which

Forum where

statute assessment the dispute is
relates pending

Finance  Act, | Service Tax 2,100,000 | April 2010 to | Service Tax

1994 September 2014 | Department

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to banks. The Company did not have any
loans or borrowings from any financial institutions, government or any dues to debenture
holders during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the Company has
not raised any money by way of initial public offer/further public offer (including debt
instruments). However, the money raised as term loan from bank during the year was applied
for the purpose for which the loan was obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our
audit.

The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to the public
companies. Accordingly, the provision of Clause 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The Company was not
required to constitute an audit committee as per the provisions of the Act. hence compliance
with Section 177 of the Act is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company. the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the vear.
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Aujas Networks Private Limited
Annexure — A to the Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act 1934.

for BS R & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration number: 116231 W/W-100024

Gogt™

Sagar Lulla
Partner
Membership number: 137645

\3

Bangalore
30 April 2019
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Aujas Networks Private Limited

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report on Ind AS financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2019

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph (A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company
as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2019, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with respect to financial
statement criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the

accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing. prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
respect to financial statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

2%
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Aujas Networks Private Limited

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report on Ind AS financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2019 (continued)

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding
of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists. and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

for BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration number: 116231 W/W-100024

g ™

Sagar Lulla
Parmer
Membership number: 137645

Bangalore
30 April 2019




Aujas Networks Private Limited
Balance sheet

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Propeny, plant and equiptnent
Intangible assels
Fiancial assets
= Other financial assets
Lreferred tax assets et )
Non-gurrent tax assets (iel)
Tutal non-current assets

Current assels
Financial assels
- Current investments
- Trade receivables
- Cash and cash equivalents
- Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
- Loans
- Other financial assets
Oiher curient assets
Total current assels

Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
Shate capial
Other equity
Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Financial habilities
- Borrowmgs
Provisians
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial abifines
- Trade payables

Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises
Fotal outstanding dues to creditors other than micro and small enterpr:

- Uther financial labilites
Pravisions
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities

Total equity and labilities

Significant accounting policies

[he netes referred (o above form an mtegral punt of the finangial statenients

As per our report of even date attached

for B8 R & Assuciutes LLP
Chanered Accountanis
Fir registration number 116231 WL 100024

Guan W

Parmer

Membership no. _|3_?6£f5

Blace: Bangalore

Dae 30-0 - 20194

Note

29
29

1
1]
12
13

14
15

s
18
19
20

21

J Ravichandran
Jdrectonr

DIN 000 3336

Asat
31 March 2019

Asat
31 March 2018

Js i Hiouscnds
As al
1 April 2007

PGy Secreiainry

13.093 11,744 8441
I3 207 h 542
wRad Y412 8,357
906 34 30,358 OE. 3V
119,501 77,811 858,731
1000 12,028 4,890
169,897 193,960 214.143
32,868 18,376 6,849
15.891 16,866 15,866
2915 11.370 11,399
17,322 92,601 (69,6327
18,750 10,182 4,940
358,643 355,383 327,724
478,144 433,194 413,455
263,135 2244 22040
3.392 297,348 287,921
295,527 319562 309,961
52838 429 1.505
GA23 2704 4,391
59,261 3,633 2.896
27270 27516 18,360
4454 23549 10,119
5.088 4,610 647
80,544 75,614 684606
123,356 109,999 97,598
478,144 433,194 413,458
for and on belvalf of the Board of Lirectors of
Aujus Networks Private Limited
N Myuralidaran / Sameer Shelke

(e




Aujas Networks Private Limited
Statement of profit and loss

Income
Revenue from operations
Other income

Total income

Expenses
Cost of waded products
Cost of technical subcomracions
Employee benefits expense
Finance costs
Depreciation and smortization expense
Oiher expenses

Toial expenses

(Loss) / Prafit before tax
Tax expense
- Current tax
- Deferred tax
(Loss) / Profii for the year, net of tax

Other comprehensive income:

Ttems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Qther comprehensive income for the year, net of taxes
Total comprehensive income for the year
Earnings per equity share @

- Basic

= Diluted
Total comprehensive income per equity share :

- Busic

- Diluted

Significant accounting policies

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

for BS R & Associntes LLP
Clreretervdd Acconniemiy
Firm registration number | 1623 1W/W-100024
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Note
-
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29

jiir and on behal§ of the Board of Directors off

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Iex i ilanesciids
For the year ended
31 March 2018

LEENE. ECLNE
3,949 8 902
947,138 B99,181
TS 25,088
93 4494 08,270
bR 043 IR RIE Y]
BT 1132
6516 3922
197,355 187026
974,903 B91,081
(27.768) H.100
= 10z
(702)

(27.768) 8,100
1422 (936}
1,422 {936)
(26.346) 7164
(0 10) 038
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{0 10) 034
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Aujas Networks Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity

# Share capital

s i thonsaindy

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Balance at the beginming of the year 23214 22.040
Changes inequity share capital during the year
Issue of equity shares for cash - 174
Issue of equity shares from utilization of securities premium 242,921 .
_E.lil-am:rn the end ol'llle'Leir_ 265,138 22214

b Other Equity

For the veac ended 31 March 2010

B ity

Particulars

Reserves and surplus

Other comprehensive income

Securities premium

Retaimed earnings

Shure based payment

Remeasurements of actuarial

Total equity

reserve gain and losses
Balance as at | April 2018 712,246 (427.740) 4.737 (1885 207348
Loss for the year - {27 7o) - 1277084
Other comprehensive income. (net of taxes) 1422 LAz
Contributions and distributions:
Employee stock compensalon expense E o 73
Conversion of preference shares 1o equity shares (242.921) F
Exercise of options by employecs - - (3,864) = (3,804)
Balance as at 31 March 2019 479,325 (455.514) 7,048 {467) 30,392
B s
.
S0
5 55UC, .
¥ e
S
iy
[ r
\ r
J
“‘— ’ F
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Aujus Networks Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity (continued)

b Other Equity (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2018

I v dhioneniidy

Particulars Reserves and surplus Other comprehensive income
Securities Preminm Retained Earnings  Share based payment Remeasurements of actuarial Total equity

reserve gain nnd losses

Balance as nt 1 April 2017 722,007 (435.846) 2,713 {953} 287,911

Issue of equity shares duning the year 179 = - - |79

Profit for the year 8,100 = - RA00

Other comprehensive income, (net of taxes) - (936 1936)

Contributions and distributions:

Employee stock compensation expense 2,084 - 2,084

Exercise of options by amployees ol - (i} - .

Balance as it 31 March 2018 722,246 (427,746) 4,737 (1.889) 297,348

3

Sigmificant accounting policies
The notes referred to sbove form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date anached

Jur BS R & Associates LLP
{ hartered Accountains
Firm registranion number 116231 W/W- 100024

SM‘( \V\\\'\
Sagu. Lullo.

Pariner

Membership no 3764 5

Place. Bangalore

pae 30- 01 -2014

furand on behalt of the Board of Chrectors of
Aujas Networks Private Limited

Jkﬁchanark

Direcior

pin 00032336

ameer Shelke
ko)

rateek Suvla

Compuany Secrviary

e



Aujas Networks Private Limited
Statement of casi fTows

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/ (loss) for the year
Adjustments:
- Interest income on income tax refund
- Interest income on deposits
- Dividend income from mutual fund investments
- Profit/loss on sale of plant and equipment
- Interest expense
- Provision for doubtful debts. net
- Stock compensation expense
- Depreciation and amortization
- Unrealised loreign exchange loss
Operating cash flow before working capital changes
Changes in
. - Trade receivables
- Current and non-current loans
- Current and non-current financial asscts
- Other current and non-current assets
- Trade payables
- Current liabilities
- Current and non-current provisions
Cash generated from operations
Income taxes (paid) / refund received. net
Cush used in operations (A)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Investment in term deposit

Proceeds from sale of property. plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of investments

[nvestment in mutual fund units

Interest and dividend income received

Net cash generated from investing activities (B)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds [rom/ (repayment of) long-term and short-term borrowings
Interest paid

Proceeds from issue of shares

[ixercise ol option by employee

Proceeds from long term loans

Net eash used in financing activities (C)

For the year ended

31 March 2019

Rs in thousands
For the year ended
31 March 2018

(26.346) 7.164
= [S217)
(967) (1.306)

(195) -
(8) 1677)
670 1,119
714 752
6.175 2,084
6.516 5.922
887 (670)
(12,554) 9.171
23349 20,131
8.455 29
(25.178) (24.5060)
(8.5068) (5.242)
(246) 9.130
10,930 7.145
4,197 2.276
385 18,100
(40.041) 17.250
(39,650) 35,350
(7.609) (7.323)
975 (1.700)

1.214 .
12,028 39.840
(1.000) (46.3001
1.137 2.547
6,745 (12,938)
822 (517)
(670) (1.119)
- 353

(3.804) -
52.000 (9.574)
48,288 (10.857)

j—

NS00, |
| ‘:I"I_Il.
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Aujas Networks Private Limited
Statement of cash flows (continued)
Rs in thousands

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Net decrease in cash and eash equivalents (A+B+C) 15.377 11.555
Cush and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 18.376 6.849
Effect of movements in exchange rates on cash held (887) (28)
C ash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 32,866 18,376
Components of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 9)
Balances with banks:
- in current accounts 32.868 18.370
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 32,868 18,376
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
for BS R & Associates LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Aujas Networks Private Limited
Firm registration number: 116231 W/W-100024
\al\&
Gear
Sagpa kallec J Ravichandran
Pariner Direcior )
Membership no.: 37645 DIN: 00033336 [

Place: Bangalore

Date: $0-0U -2014

Sameer Shelke
CEO
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Company Secretary

Place: Bangalore
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
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Company background

Aujas Networks Private Limited (*the Company’) was mcorporated on 8 February 2008 as a private limited company under the Companies Act.
1956 (“the Act”) The Company offers data secunity management services including application security, IT risk management, identity
management and vulnerability management. The Company commenced commercial operations in Apnl 2008 The registered office of the
Company has been changed to *No 595.4th Floor, 24th Main, 15th Cross. ) P Nagar |st Phase, Bangalore — 560078 with effect from 1 June 2011

The Company earns revenus through sale of security management services and products.
The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 30 Apnil 2019

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared i accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indmn
Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015 nonfied under Section 133 of Companies Act. 2013, (the *Act’) and other relevant provisions ol the Acl The
Company is required 1o prepare its financial statements under Ind AS since the Company was acquired by NSE IT Linited on 22 March 2019,
which is mandatorily required 1o present its financial statements under Ind AS as per the notification issued by the Mimistry of Corporate aflairs
on 1610 February 2013

The tinancial statements up to and for the vear ended 31 March 2018 were prepared in accordance with the Companies ( Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2006, notified under Section 133 of the Actand other relevant provisions of the Act (Indian GAAP or ‘previous GAAPY

As these are the Company’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), Ind AS 101, First-time
Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards has been applied An explanation of haw the transition 1o Ind AS has afTected the previously repored
financial position and financial performance of the Company 1s provided in note 3.15

Functional and presentation currency
These financial Is are p ted in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional currency All amounts have been
rounded-oft to the nearest thousands, unless otherwise indicated.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company preseits assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based an current/ non-current classification. An assel 15 treated as current when i1
15

- expecied 10 be realised or intended to be sold or consumed 1n normal operating cvele,

- held primarily for the purpose of trading.

- expected 1o be reahised within twelve months after the reporting penod, or

- cash or cash equivalent unless restnicted from beng exchanged or used to settle a hability for at least twelve manths atter the reporting penod

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liabulity is current when i is

- expected to be setled i normal operating cycle,

- held primanly for the purpose of irading,

- due to be settled within twelve months afier the reporting penod. or

- there 1s no unconditional tight 1o defer the setilement of the hability for at least twelve months after the reporting peiiod
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the nme between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company
has identified twelve months as its operating cycle

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the followimg items

Items Measurement basis

Liability for equity settled share based plan Fair value

Net defined benefit (asset) liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit
obligations




Aujas Networks Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 (continued)

2.5

.6

Use of estimates and judgements

In prepaning the financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumpnions thal affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, habilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. They are based on historical experience and other factors and that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstance Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively

Judgements, assumptions & estimates

Information about judgements, assumptions and estimates made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements 1s included in the following notes

-note 4 and 5: property, plant and equipment and other imtangible assets: usetul life of asset.

- note 34 recognition of deferred tax asset availability of future taxable profit against which defeired tax can be used,

- note 35 recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies. key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of

resources

- note 37 employee stock option plan. key assumptions about the mputs used

- note 42: measurement of defined benefit obligation key actuarial assumptions.
- note 44 and 45 impairment of financial assets

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Compam s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of farr values, for both financial and non-financial
assets and habilines

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation technigues as follows.

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2 inputs other than quoted prices included i Level 1 that are observable for the asset of lHability, either directly (1e as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

- Level 3 inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data ( unobservable inpus)

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a hability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible 1fthe inputs used 1o measure
the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement 1s categorised i ils
entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy ai the end of the reporting period during which the change has
occurred




Aujas Networks Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2019 (continued)

3 Significant accounting polices
3.01 Property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets

a) Recognition and measurement
Ttems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, 1if any

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after

deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item 10 its working condition for 1ts intended use and
estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item ana restoring the site on which itis located

If significant pans of an item of property, plant and equipment have di flerent useful lives. then they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment 1= recogmised m statement of profit or loss

b) Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS. the Company has elected 10 contimue with the carrving value of all of its praperty. plant and equipment recognised as at |
April 2017, measured as per the previous GAAP, and use that carrving value as the deemed cost of such property, plant and squipment (see note
48)

¢) Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only 1011 1s probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the
Company

d) Depreciation

Depreciation is caleulated on cost of items of property. plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their esumated useful lives
using the straight-line method, and is generally recogmsed i the statement of profit and loss The Company believes that the existing useful life as
piven below represents the best useful estimated lives of these assets. Accordingly, the Company has carmied out an external assessment which 15
different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule 11 of the Companies Act 2013

The estimated useful lives of items of property. plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as follows

Asset Management estimate Uselul life as per
of useful life Schedule 11
Computers 3 years 3 vewrs
Office equipment 3 years 5 vears
Furmiture and fixtures 5 vears 10 vears
Vehicles 5 vears § veuars

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the lease term or estimated useful life of 3 vears, whichever is lower

Depreciation method. useful lives and residual values are reviewed al each financial vear-end and adjusted (1 appropniate. Based on ivernal
assessiment, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives as given above best represent the penod over which management expects 1o
use these assels

Depreciation on additions (disposals) 1s provided ona pro-rata basis e from (upto) the date on which assel is ready for use (disposed of

»S50C/,




Aujas Networks Private Limited
Notes to the financinl statements for the vear ended 31 March 2009 (continued)

3.0

3.03

3.04

Revenue recognition

u) Security management services

Revenue from data security management services compries revenue from time and matenal/transaction based and fixed price comtarcts. Revenue
from time and material/transaction based contracts is recognised as the related services are rendered. Revenue from fixed price contract is
recogmised in accordance with the percentage of completion method determined based on project costs mcurred to the date as a percentage of total
estimated project costs required to complete the project.

Unbilled revenue represents revenue recogmised in excess of billings as at the end of reparting period. Unearned revenue represents billing in
excess of revenue recognized.

Revenue on maintenance contracts are recognised ratably over the period in which services are rendered

Revenue are stated net of trade/volume discounts and any applicable duties or taxes

b) Interest income or expense

Interest on deployment of surplus funds is recognised using the nme proportionate methos based on underlymg interest rates
Dividend income on investment is recognised when the right to receive payment is established

Leases

Assets acquired under lease, where the company has substanually assumed all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
lease Such lease are capitalised at the mception of the lease, at fair value of asset or the present value of the mimimum lease paymens, whichever
15 lower

Assets acquired under lease, where a sigmificant portion of the nisk an rewards of ownership are ret ned by the lessor, are classified as operaling
leases Lease rentals are charged 1o the statement of profit and loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Financial instruments

a) Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financral liabilines are
initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the mstrument

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).
transaction costs that are directly attributable 1o 11s acquisiion or 1ssue




Aujas Networks Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 (continued)

3.04 Financial instruments (continued)

b) Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified and measured at

- amortised cost,

- Fair value through other comprehensive meome (FVOCT - debt investment,

- Faur value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT) — equity investment, or

- Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recogmtion, except if and i the period the Company changes its business modz| for
managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows: and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give nise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely pavments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding

A debt investment is measured at FVOCT if it meets both of the following conditions and 15 not designated as at FVTPL

— the asset 1s held within o business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash ows and selling financial assets. and
— the contractual terms of the financial asset give nse on specified dates to cash flows that are solely pavments of principal and mterest onthe
principal amount outstanding

On initial recognition of an equity mvestment that 1s not held for trading. the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the
vestment’s fair value m OCT (designated as FYOCT - equity investment) Tins election s micde on an mvestment- by- mvestment hasis

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FYOCI as deseribed above are measured a1t FVTPL. This includes all denivative
financial assets On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be

measured at amortised cost or at FVOC! as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismateh that would otherwise
anse,

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend
at FVTPL income, are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets These assets are subsequently measured al amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost
at amortised is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
cost recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss

Debt These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the effective interest method, foreigm
investments at exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss Other net gains and losses are
FVOC! recognised in OCI, On derecogmition. gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss

Equiy These assets are subsequently measured at fair value Dividends are recognised as mcome i profit or loss unless
mvestiments at the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the mvestment Other net gans and losses are
FVOCI recoenised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss

Financial liabilities. Classification, subsequent measurement and gams and losses

Financial liabilities are classified and measured ar amornised cost or FVTPL A financial lability is classified as al FVTPL if iU 1s classified as held:
for-trading, or it 1s a derivative or 1t 1s designated as such on imtial recogmnon. Finaneial habilities at FVTPL are measured at far value and net
gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised w profit or loss Other financial labilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective mterest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gams and losses are recognised n profit or loss. Any gain or loss
on derecogition is also recognised in profit or loss




Aujas Networks Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 {eontinued)

3.04 Financial instruments (continued)

¢) Derecognition
Financial assels

The Company derecognises a linancial asset when the contractual rights 1o the cash flows from the financial asset expire. o il transters the nights
10 receive the contractual cash flows n a transaction in which substanually all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred or in which the Company neither transters nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain
control of the financial asset

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the
visks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled. or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when 11s terms are modified and the cash Nows under the modified terms are substantially
different. In this case, a new financial hiability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value The difference between the carrving
amount of the financial liability extingwished and the new financial lability with moditied terms i recognised in profit or loss

i) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and onlv when, the Company currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and 1t intends either 10 settle them on a net basis or 1o realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Impairment

a) Impairment of financial instruments
The Company recognises loss allowanees for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortised cost

Al each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amonised cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset 1s “credit-
impaired” when one or more events that have a detnmental impact on {he estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have oceurred

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal 1o lifetime expected eredit losses, excep! for the following, which are measured as 12
month expected credit losses

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date: and

_ other debt securities and bank balances for which eredit nisk (1. the nisk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument)
has not increased significantly since initial recognition

Loss allawances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal 1o lifetime expected credit losses

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible defaull events over the expected hife of financial
instrument

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that are possible within 12 mounths after
the reporting date (or a shorter period it the expected life of the instrument 15 less than 12 months)

In all cases, the maximum period considered when esimating expected credit losses 1§ the masimum contractual peniod over which the Company
15 exposed to credit nsk

When deterimmng whether the credin nsk of a financial assel has increased significantly since initial recogmition and when estimating expected
credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable nformation that is relevant and available without undue cost or efforn This
ineludes both quantitative and qualitative ntormation and analyvsis, based on the Company's histaneal experience and informed credit assessment
and including forward-looking intormation

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expecied credit losses are a probability-weighted esti of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shonfalls
(i.e the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects 10
receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets
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3.05

3.06

Impairment (continued)

Write-ofl’

The gross carrving amount of a financial asset1s wiitten ol (erther partially or i full) 1o the extent that there 15 no realisiic prospect of recovery
This is generally the case when the Company derermunes that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject 1o the write-off However. financial assets that are writien-oft could sull be subject 1o enforcement
activities in arder 1 comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due

b) Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company’s non-financial assets. other than deterred 1ax assels, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there 1s any
indicanion of impairment. 1f any such ndication exists, then the asser’s recoverable amount is estimated

The recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit (CGU) (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to
sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash Nows, discounted 1o their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that retlects curient
market assessments of the time valug of money and the risks specific 1o the CGL' (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised 1f the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds s estumated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recogmised in the statement of profit and loss.

In respeet of assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting date whether there 15
any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used 10
determine the recoverable amount, Such a reversal is made only 10 the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the camying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation. if no impairment loss had been recognised

Employee benefits

#) Short-term employee benefits

Shor-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service 15 provided A habiliny 15
recognised for the amount expected 1o be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the emplovee. and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably

b) Share-based payment transactions

The Company recogiizes compensation expense relating 1o share-based payments in net profit using fair-value in accordance with Ind A8 102,
Share Based Payment The estimated fiur value of awards 1s charged 1o income on straight-line basis over the requisite service penod for each
separately vesting portion of the award as il the award was in-substance, multiple awards with a comesponding mereise 10 share ophions
outstanding account,

¢) Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which contribution are made to appropriate authanties at a predetermimed
rates and charged to the statement of profit and loss in the vear in which they are incurred.

d) Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a postemployment benefit plan other than & defined contribution plan. The Company’s nel obligation m respect of
defined benefit plans s calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have eamed n the current
and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation 15 performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected umt credi method. When the
caleulation results in a potential asset for the Company., the recopnised asset 1s limited 1o the present value of economic benefits avalable n the
form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions m fulure contnbutians 1o the plan (“the asset caling’) In order 1o caleulate the presem
vatlue of economic benetits, consideration 1s given (o any nunimum funding requiremients

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuanal pains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and
the eftect of the asset cerling (1f any. excluding mterest), are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OC1H) The Company detemunes the net
interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit hability (asset) for the period by applying the discount raie used 10 measuie the defined
benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period o the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking nto account any changes 0 the net
defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and Denefit payments. Net inierest expense and othier expenses related
10 delined benefit plans are recogmsed 1 the statement of profit and loss

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change n benefit that relates to past service ("pasi service cost’
or ‘past service gan’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss. The Company recognises
gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement oceurs
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3.06

.07

3.08

Employee benefits (continued)

¢) Compensated absence

The employees can carrv-torward a portion of the unutihised accrued compensated absences and utilise 110 future service peniods. The Company
records an obligation for such compensated absences i the period i which the employvee renders the services that nerease this entitlement The
obligation 1s measured on the basis of an independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credin method as at the reporting date. To the
extent the employee has unconditional right 1o avaul the leave. the same has been classified as “current” even though the same 15 mieasured as
“ather long-term employee benefit” as per Ind AS 19

) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are expensed t the earlier of when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the Company
recogmises costs for a restructuring 11 benefits are nol expected 1o be settled wholly within 12 months of the reporting date. then they are
discounted

Foreign currency

a) Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the Company at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions

Monetary assets and labilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency al the exchange rate ai the reporting
date. Non-monetary assets and habilities that are measured al fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency @t the
exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assels and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost i a foreign
currency are translated at the exchange rate ai the date of the transaction Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss

) Foreign operations

In respect of integral aperiion. MONETATY Assels and laibilities are translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the balance sheet. Non-
monetary items are translated at listorical rate The items in the statement of profit and loss are transiated at the average exchange rate during the
period. The differences arising out of the translation are recognised in the statement of profit and loss In respect of non ntegral operations, Assets
and linbilities are translated at the exchange rate prevaling at the date of the balance sheet The items in the statement of profit and loss are
rranshated at the average exchange rate duning the penod The difference atising out of the waslanon are transfered 10 translation reserve

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. 1 is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates 1o a busiess combination or 1o
an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

a) Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years The amoum of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or recewved after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related 10 Income laxes It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date

Cutrent tax assels and current tax liabilities are offser only if there is a legally enforceable right 10 set ofl the recognised amounts, and 1118
intended 10 realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.
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3.08

3.09

3.10

3.1

313

Income tax (continued)

b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the camying amounts of assets and habilities for financial reporting
purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of camied forward 1ax losses and
tax eredits. Deferred tax 1s not recognised for

- temporary differences ansing on the initial recogninion of assets or liabilities in 4 fransaction that 1s not a business combination and thar aftects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss ar the time of the transaction,

- lemporary differences releted 10 imvestments i subsidianes 10 the extent that the Campany 1s able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it 1s probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable temporary difterences arising on the initial
recognition of goodwill

Deferred tax 1s measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset 1s realised or the lability 15 settled. based on the
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, ai the reporting
date, 1o recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities

Deferred 1ax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate 10
income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable ennity, or on different tax entities, but they intend 1o settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and labilities will be realised simultaneously

Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event. the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably,
and it is probable that an cutflow of economic benefits will be required 1o settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash fows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) al
a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the nme value of money and the risks specific to the Lability The unwinding of the
discount is recogmsed as finance cost Expected future operating losses are not provided for

Contingent liabilities

A cantingent liability exists when there 1s a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obhgation that may, but probably will not, require
an outflow of resources, or a present abligaton whose amount cannot be estimuted reliably Contingent habilines do not warrant provisions. bui
are disclosed unless the possibility of outllow of resources s remote. Contingent assets are disclosed i the fnancnl stutements 1 an inflow ol
economic benefits 1s probable

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial mstitutions, other short-term, highly lquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject 1o an insignificant nisk of
changes in value. and bank overdrafts Bank overdrafis are shown within borrowings in current financial habilities i the balance shee

Cash Mow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of & non-cash nature and
any deferrals or aceruals of past or future cash receipts or pavments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated

Earnings per share

In determining the eaming per share, the net profit afier tax 1s divided by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year The
number of shares used in computing diluted eamings per share compnises the weighted average number of shares considered for derving basic
eamings per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all potennal dilutive
equity shares. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed comverted as of the beginming of the period unless issued at a later date In compiting
dilutive earming per share, only potential equity shares that are dilunve 1e which reduces earmings per share or increases loss per share are
included
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3.15 Standards / pronouncements issued but not yet effective
Ind AS 116, Leases:
On 30 March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 116, Leases. Ind AS 116 will replace the existing leases standard, Ind
AS 17, Leases, and related mterpretations. The standard sets out the prineiples for the recogmition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases tor both parties to a contract i.e., the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires the lessee
to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlyimg asset 1s of low value Currently
operating lease expenses are charged 1o the Statement of Profit and Loss The standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements for lessees

The effectve date for the adoption of Ind AS 116 15 annual periods beginning on or after | April 2019 The standard permits two possible
methods of transition

* Full retrospective - Retrospectively 1o each prior period presented applving Ind AS 8. Accounting Policies, Changes m Accounting Estimates
and Errors

* Madified retrospective — Retrospectively, with the cumulanve effect of imitially applying the standard recogmized at the date of imnial appheanon
under modified retrospective approach. the lessee records the lease lability as the presem value of the remating lease payments. discounted at
the incremental borrowing rite and the night of use assel is equal 10 the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments related to that lease recognized under Ind AS 17 immediately before the date of ininal application

On completion of evaluation of the effect of adoption of Ind AS 116, the Company is proposing 1o use the “Moditied Retrospective Approach” for
transitioning 10 Ind A5 116, and take the cumulative adjustment to retained earmings. on the date of initial application (1 Apnl 2019)
Accordingly. comparatives for the year ended 31 March 2019 will nat be retrospectively adjusted. The effect of adoption of Tnd AS 116 would be
msignificant in the financial statements

Ind AS 12, Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment:

On 30 March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12, Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which is 1o
be applied while performing the determination of taxable profit (or loss), 1ax bases, unused 1ax losses. unused tax credits and tax rates, when there
IS uncertainty aver mcome tax treatments under Ind AS 12 According to the appendix, companies need 10 deternine the probability of the
relevant 1ax authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments, that the companies have used or plan 1o use in their income tix
filing which has 10 be considered to compute the most likely amount or the expected value of the tax treatment when determining taxable profi
(tax loss), 1ax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates,

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual periods beginning an or after | April 2019 The Company does not have any
impact on account of this amendment

Amendment to Ind AS 12, Income taxes:

On 30 March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments 1o the guidance m Ind AS 12, Income Taxes, 1 connection with
accounting for dwvidend distribution taxes. The amendment clanifies that an entity shall recognize the income tax conseguences of dividends
profit or loss. other comprehensive income or equity accord ng 1o where the entity onginally recogrized those past transactions or events

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after | April 2019 The Company does not have any impact on
account of this amendment

Amendment to Ind AS 19, plan amendment, curtailment or settlement:

On 30 March 2019, the Mimstry of Corporate Aftairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits, in connection with accounting for
plan amendments, curtatlments and settlements

The amendments require an entity

* To use updated assumptions 1o determine current service cost and nel interest for the remamder of the period afier a plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement; and

* To recogmize 0 profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gam or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was not
previously recognized because of the impact of the asset ceiling

Effective date for application of this amendment 1s annual period beginning on or after 1 April 2019. The Company does not have any impact on
account of this amendment.
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3.15 First time adoption

As stated in Note 2.1, these are the Company s first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For the year ended 3|
March 2018, the Company had prepared its financial statements in accordance with Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules.
2006, notified under Section 133 of the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act (*previous GAAP® or 'Indian GAAP')

Accordingly. the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable as at and for the year ended 31
March 2019, together with the comparative period duta as at and for the year ended 31 March 2018 and in the preparation of an
opening Ind AS balance sheet as at | April 2017 (the Company's transition date) as deseribed n the summary ol sigmificant
accounting policies. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its Indian GAAP financial
statements. including the balance sheet as at | April 2017 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2018

Optional exemptions availed and mandatory exceptions

In preparing these financial statements, the Company has applied the below mentioned optional exemptions and mandatory
exceptions

Optional exemptions availed:

Share-based payments

Ind AS 101 allows a first-time adopter to elect not to apply Ind AS 102 - Share-based Payment to equity instruments that were
vested before the transition date. Accordingly, the C ompany has elected the optional exemption given and not accounted for share
options vested prior to | April 2017 as per Ind AS 102,

Property plant and equipment and intangible assets

As per Ind AS 101 an entity may elect 1o

(i) measure an item of property. plant and equipment at the date of transition at its fair value and use that fair vialue as its deemed
cost at that date,

(1) use a previous GAAP revaluation of an item of praperty. plant and equipment at or betore the date of transition as deemed cost
at the date of the revaluation. provided the revaluation was. at the date of the revaluation, broadls comparabie to

- fair value.

- or cost or depreciated cost under Ind AS adjusted 1o reflect. for example. changes n a general or specific price index

The elections under (1) and (1) above are also available for intangible assets that meets the recognition criteria in Ind AS 38
Intangible Assets. (including reliable measurement of original cost). and criteria in Ind AS 38 for revaluation (including the
existence of an active market).

(1) use carrying values of property. plant and equipment and intangible assets as on the date of transition 1o Ind AS (which are
measured in accordance with previous GAAP

As permitted by Ind AS 101, the Company has elected 1o continue with the carrying values under previous GAAP for all the ntems
of property. plant and equipment. The same election has been made in respect of intangible assets also. The Company has disclosed
the net carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as its deemed cost as at the date of transition.
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First time adoption (continued)
Mandatory exceptions:

Classification and measurement of financial assets

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification of financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances existing as on the
date of transition. Further, the standard permits measurement of financial assets accounted at amortized cost based on tacts and
circumstances existing at the date of transition if retrospective application 1s impracticable

Accordingly. the Company has determined the classification of financial assets based on facts and circumstances that exist on the
date of transition. Measurement of the financial assets accounted at amortised cost has been done retrospectively

Estimates

Ind AS 101 prohibits the use of hindsight 1o correct estimates made under previous GAAP unless there 1s objective evidence of
error 1t only allows to adjust the estimates made under previous GAAP when the basis of caleulation does not comply with Ind AS
Upon an assessment of the estimates made under Previous GAAP. the Company has concluded that there was no necessity 1o revise
such estimates under Ind AS. other than those required due to apphicaton of Ind AS

De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities

Ind AS 101 requires a first-time adopter to apply the derecogmtion requirements of Ind AS 109 prospectively to transactions
occurring on or after the date of transition However. it also allows the firsi-time adopter that wants to apply the derecognition
requirements in Ind AS 109 retrospectively from a date of the entity’s choosing may only do so. provided that the mformation
needed to apply Ind AS 109 to financial assets and financial liabilities derecognised as a result of past transactions was obtained at
the time of initially accounting for those transactions

The Company has chosen to avail the exception to apply the derecognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively from the date of
transition
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First time adoption (continued)
Reconciliation between previous GAAP and Ind AS:

(i) (a) Reconciliation of equity as at date of transition (1 April 2017)

Rs in thousands

Particulars Notes to first-time Previous Adjustments Ind As
adoption CAAP*
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property. plant and equipment 8441 - 8.44]
Intangible assets 542 = 542
Financial assets
- Other financial assets 8,357 - 8.357
Non-current tax assets (net) 68.391 68 3]
Total non-current assets 85,731 85,731
Current assets
Financial assets
- Current investment 4,890 - 4.890
- Trade receivables 214,143 = 214,143
- Cash and cash equivalents 6,849 6.849
- Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 15,866 - 15,866
- Loans 11.399 3 11,399
- Other financial assets 69,637 - 69637
Other current assets 4.940 - 4.940
Total current assets 327,724 - 327,724
Total assets 413,455 413,455
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 22.040 L 22,040
Other equity ** A 291,223 (3.302) 287,921
Total equity 313,263 (3,302) 309,961
Non-current liabilities
Financial habilines
- Borrowings 1.503 1.503
Provisions A 1,089 3,302 4.391
Total non-current liabilities 2,594 3,302 5,596
Current liabilities
Finaneial hiabilities
- Trade pavables 18.366 - 18,366
= Other financial babilities 10,119 - 10,119
Provisions 647 - 647
Other current liabilities 68,466 - 68.466
Total current liabilities 97,598 97,598
Total equity and liabilities 413,455 - 413,455

* The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified 1o conform to Ind AS pre

sentation requirements for the purposes of this note

** Rs 1.386 thousand has been reversed from Share based payment reserve to General reserve to account of outstanding options in

accordance with Ind AS 101
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First time adoption (continued)

(b) Reconcilintion of equity as at 31 March 2018

Rs in thousands

Particulars Notes to first-time Previous Adjustments Ind As
GAAP*

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 11.744 - 11,744

Intangible assets 297 - 297

Financial assets

= Other financial assets 9412 - 9412

Deferred tax assets (net) -

Nan-current tax assets (net) 56,358 56,338
Total non-current assets 77,811 77.811
Current assets

Financial assets

- Current investment 12.028 12,028

- Trade receivables 193,96() 193,960

- Cash and cash equivalents 18.376 18.376

- Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 16.866 16 866

- Loans 11,370 11.370

- Other financial assets 42,601 92.601

Other current assets 10,182 - 10,182
Total current assets 355,383 - 355,383
Total assets 433,194 - 433,194
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Share capital 22214 z 22,214

Other equity 302,566 (5.218) 297,348
Total equity 324,780 (5.218) 319,562
Non-current liabilities

Financial habilities

- Borrowings 929 - 929

Provisions 1,226 1. 478 2.704
Total non-current liabilities 2,155 1478 3.633
Current liabilities

Financial habilities

- Trade payables 27516 - 27516

- Other financial habilities 2,239 - 2259

Provisions 870 3.740 4610

Other current liabilities 75.614 - 75614
Total current liabilities 106,259 3,740 109,999
Total equity and liabilities 433,194 - 433,194

* The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform 1o Ind AS presentation requirements for the purposes of this note

PR
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First time adoption (continued)

(ii) Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the yvear ended 31 March 2018

Rs in thousands

Particulars Notes to first-time Previous Adjustments Ind As
adoption GAAP
Income L
Revenue from operations 890,189 - 800,189
Other income 8,992 - 8.992
Total income 899,181 - 899,181
Expenses
Cost of traded products 25,685 - 25,685
Cost ol techmical subcontractors 68.276 . 68,276
Employee benefits expense A+DB 601,921 1119 603.040
Finance costs 1,132 - 1.132
Depreciation and amoruzation expense 5.922 - 5022
Other expenses 187.026 . 187.026
Total expenses 889,962 1,119 891,081
Profit/(loss) before tax 9,219 (1,119) 8100
Tax expense
- Current tax 702 - 702
- Deferred tax (702} - (702)
Profit for the year, net of tax 9,219 (1,119) 8,100
Other comprehensive income for the period
Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Remeasurements of defined benefit plan A z (936) (936)
actuarial gains/ (losses)
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
Total comprehensive income for the period 9.219 (2.055) 7.164

* The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purposes of this note
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(iii) Reconciliation of total equity as at 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2017
Hs in thousands

Particulars 31 March 2018 I April 2017
Total equity (shareholder’s funds) as per previous GAAP 324,780 313,263
Adjustments

Remeasurements for defined benefit liability (5.218) (2.302)
Total adjustments (5.218) (3,302)
Total equity as per Ind AS 319,562 309.961

Notes to the reconcilliation

A Employee benefit expenses

As per Ind AS 19, actuarial gain and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income and not reclassitied to profit and loss in
subsequent period On account of change in valuation in accordance with Ind As 19, additional cost of Rs 3.302 thousand on the
date of transition has been adjusted in opening reserve and Rs 1,917 thausand for the vear ended 31 March 2018 has be recorded
through profit and loss account

B Share based payments

Unlike in previous GAAP. Ind AS requires Companies to account for Share Based Payments (SBP) following a fair value approach
where i the call option value for the underlying stock opuionsare valued and 1s recognised as compensation cost over the vesting
period. However, Ind AS 101 allows companies not to aceount for share based payment cost for grants made in earlier periods as
long as those options vested before the transition period

The above exemption allowed the Company to account for SBP costs under fair value approach only for 10.623.544 options whose
vesting period extends beyond 1 April 2017, An amount of Rs 137 thousand was recorded as compensation ¢ost for the vear ended
31 March 2018.
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4 Property, plant and equipment Rs in thousandy
Following are the changes in the carrying value of property. plant and equipment for the year ended 31 March 2019:

Reconciliation of carrying amount

Particulars Computers qm“ Furniture Vehicles Total
equipment and fixtures

Coast or deemed cost
Balance as at | April 2017 5.891 525 28 1,997 8.441
Additions during the year 8,281 699 - - 8.980
Disposals during the vear - - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2018 14,172 1,224 28 1,997 17,421
Balance as at | April 2018 14.172 1.224 28 1,998 17.422
Additions during the year 8.742 71 11 4 8.824
Disposals during the year (62) & - (1.998) (2,060)
Balance as at 31 March 2019 22,852 1,295 39 i 24,186
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated depreciation as of 1 April
2017 - = 7 - -
Charge for the period 4.787 424 6 460 5.677
Deduction / Adjustments during the
period . . = s "
Accumulated depreciation as of 31 4,787 424 6 460 5,677
March 2018
Accumulated depreciation as of 1 April
2018 4,787 424 6 460 5.677
Charge for the period 5.536 399 3 329 6.267
Accumulated depreciation on disposals

(62) - - (789) (851)
Accumulated depreciation as of 31 10,261 823 9 - 11,093
March 2019
Carrying amount
Asat | April 2017 5,891 525 28 1,997 8.441
As at 31 March 2018 9,385 800 22 1,537 11,744
As at 31 March 2019 12,591 472 30 - 13,093

Note 4.1

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property. plant and equipment
(PPE) recognised as at 1 April 2017 measured as per the previous Indian GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of
the PPE.

Deemed cost as on | April 2017

Particulars Computers 9“‘“ Fueniture Vehicles Total
equipment and fixtures
Gross block as on | April 2017 24.543 2,488 504 2.300 20.835
Accumulated depreciation till | April 201 18.652 1.963 476 303 21.394
Net block treated as deemed cost upon
transition 5,891 525 28 1,997 8,441
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5 Intangible assets
Rs in thousands

I’artiéulars Software Total

Cost or deemed cost*:

Balance at 1 Apml 2017 542 542
Additions 3 s
Disposals & =
Balance at 31 March 2018 542 542
Balance at 1 April 2018 542 542
Additions 67 67
Disposals - -
Balance at 31 March 2019 609 6019
Accumulated depreciation

Balance at 1 April 2017 - -
Amortisation for the year 245 245
Disposals = -
Balance at 31 March 2018 245 245
Balunce at 1 April 2018 245 245
Amortisation for the year 249 249
Disposals - -
Balance at 31 March 2019 494 494
Carrying amount:

As at 1 April 2017 542 542
As at 31 March 2018 297 297
As at 31 March 2019 115 115

Note 5.1

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its intangible assets
recognised as at | April 2017 measured as per the previous Indian GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost
of the intangible assets.

Particulars Software

Gross block ason 1 April 2017 2,972

Accumulated depreciation till 1 April 2017 2.430
|

Net block treated as deemed cost upon transition 3.
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6 Other non-current financial assets
Rs i thousands

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Unsecured. considered good
Security deposit 9.194 8.712 8.357
Bank deposits (due to mature after twelve months from the 700 700 -
reporting date)
9,894 9,412 8,357

Note 6.1 - The Management has determined its security deposits not to be in the nature of loans and accordmgly have been
classified as other financial assets.

7 Current investments
Rs i thousands
Particulars As at Asat As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Investment in Mutual Funds - unquoted

Reliance Ultra Short Duration Fund

(31 March 2019 : 327.372. 31 March 2018 : Nil and

1 April 2017 : Nil) units fully paid up 1.000 » :

lata Money Market Fund

(31 March 2019 : Nil, 31 March 2018 : 4429.02 and
I April 2017 . Nil) units fully paid up i 12.028
Reliance Money Manager Fund

(31 March 2019 : Nil, 31 March 2018 : Nil and
I April 2017 : 491,751) units fully paid up

Cash Management Fund-Treasury Advantage Fund
(31 March 2019 ; Nil, 31 March 2018 : Nil and
I April 2017 : 102,552.72) units fully paid up

. - 3,600
Birla Sunlife Floating Rate Fund
(31 March 2019 : Nil, 31 March 2018 : Nil and
1 April 2017 : 522.828) units fully paid up (00
Birla Sunlife Cashplus
(31 March 2019 : Nil. 31 March 2018 : Nil and

| April 2017 ; 491.84) units fully paid up {02

Religare Incesco Credit Opportunities Fund
(31 March 2019 : Nil. 31 March 2018 - Nil and
I April 2017 : 83.27) units fully paid up

1,000 12,028 4.890

Aggregate value of unquoted investments 1.000 12,028 4,890
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments - - .
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8 Trade reccivables

a,

—

Rs in thousands

Particulars

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

As at
1 April 2017

Unsecured

Considered good 169,897 193.960 214,143
Considered doubtful 16.277 15,5363 14.771
186,174 209.523 228914
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (refer note 40) (16.277) (15.563) (14.771)
Net trade receivables 169,897 193,960 214,143
Due date based ageing
Debts outstanding tor a period exceeding six months from the
date they became due 15,833 29,077 207.272
Other debts 170,341 180,446 21,042
Total 186,174 209,523 228,914
Cash and cash equivalents
Rs in thousands
Particulars Asat Asat As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Cash on hand 17 63 -
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 32,806 18.255 6.819
- in EEFC accounts 45 56 30
Cash and cash equivalents 32,868 18,376 6,849
Book overdrafts used for cash management purposes (refer
note 19) - -
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows 32,868 18,376
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Ry in thousands
Particulars Asat Asat Asat

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

1 April 2017

Balances with banks
- fixed deposit accounts with banks (due to mature
within twelve months from the reporting date)

15,891

16,8006

15,860

15,891

16,866

15,866
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Current loans

s i thousands

Particulars ‘ Asat As al As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Unsecured. considered good '
Loans and advances 1o employees 2376 5.689 5718
Loans and advances o related parties (refer note 36) 339 5.681 5.681
2,915 11,370 11,399

Other current financial assets

Rs n thousands

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 I April 2017
Unsecured. considered good
Unbilled revenue 110.761 88.718 64,460
Security deposit 6.034 3.381 3434
Interest accrued on bank deposits 527 502 1,743
117,322 92,601 69,637

Note 12.] - The Management has determined its securiny deposits not to be in the nature of loans and accordingly have
been classified as other financial assets

Other current assets

Ky in thousands

Particulars As at As at Asat

31 March 2019 31 March 2018 I April 2017

Prepaid expenses 9.954 9.553 4.858

Advances 1o suppliers 3.296 629 82
GST mput credit receivable 5.500 - -

18,750 10,182 4,940

—
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14 Share capital

R thousaicds

(a}) Particulars

As at Asat Asat
31 March 20019 31 March 2018 I April 2017
Authorised
268,999,800 (31 March 2018 28,999.800 and | April 2017 28,999 800) equity shares ol 269,000 20,000 29,000
INR | each
15,000 (31 March 2018 - 15.000 and | April 2017 - 13,000) Seres A equity shares of INR | ] 15 Is
each
1.0GO ( 31 March 2018 - 1.000 and | Apnl 2017 1,000) Series B equity shares of INR | I |
each
205.882 (31 March 2018 205,882 and | April 2017 205 882) compulsorily convertible 206 206 206
Series A preference shares of INR | each
57.812 (31 March 2018 : 57,812 and | April 2017 - 57,812) compulsonily convertible Series 58 58 58
Al preference shares of INR | each
57.962 (31 March 2018 - 57,962 and | April 2017 57,962) compulsorily convertible Series 58 58 58
A2 preference shares of INR | each
90.581 (31 March 2018 90,581 and | April 2007 90,581) compulsorily convertible Series 91 91 9
AJ preference shares of INR | each
32,094 (31 March 2018 - 32,094 and | April 2017 © 32,094) compulsorily convertible Series 32 32 32
A4 preference shares of INR | each
-14.3?5{“ March 2018 - 14,875 and 1 April 2017 14.875) compulsorily convertible Series |5 15 15
AS preference shares of INR | each
17,250 (31 March 2018 . 17,250 and | April 2007 172501 compulsorily convertible Series 7 17 17
AL preference shares of INR | each
10,125 (31 March 2018 10,125 and | April 2007 10,125) compulsonly convertible Serres |0 1 10
AT preference shares of INR | each
IBS 119 (31 March 2018 385,119 and | Apnl 2017 - 385,119 compulsonly convertible 185 i85 183
Series B preference shares of INR | each
73.000 (31 March 2018 . 75,000 and | April 2017 75,000) compulsorily convertible Series 75 73 75
BI preference shares of INR | each
37,500 (31 March 2018 - 37,500 and | Apnl 2017 . 37,500) compulsorily convertible Series 38 38 38
B2 preference shares of INR 1 each
270,001 30,001 30,001
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14 Share capital (continued)

Issued, subseribed and fully paid up
s i thonsands
Particulars Asat Asat Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 I April 2017

265,132,321 (31 March 2018 21,220,248 and | Apnl 2017 21,051 531 equity shares of 165,132 21,226 21,052
INR 1 each fully pmd-up
2,010 (31 March 2018 - 2,010 and | April 2017 0 2,010) Series A equity shares of INR | 2 2 2
each fully paid-up
1.000 (31 March 2018 : 1,000 and 1 April 2017 1,000} Series B equity shares of INR | | [
each fully paid-up
Nil (31 March 2018 - 205 882 and | Apnil 2017 205.882) compulsarily convertible Series - 200 206
A preference shares of INR | cach
Nil (31 March 2018 : 57,812 and | April 2017 - 57.812) compulsorily convertible Series Al - 58 58
preference shares of INR | each
Nil (31 March 2018 - 57.962 and | April 2017 . 57,962) compulsorily convertible Seres A2 - 58 58
preference shares of INR | each
Nil (31 March 2018 : 90,581 and | April 2017 - 90.581) compulsorily convertible Serjes A3 ] 91 9
preference shares of INR | each
Nil (31 March 2018 : 32,004 and | Apnil 2017 32,094) compulsarily convertible Series A4 = A2 32
preference shares of INR | each
NIl (31 March 2018 ; 14,875 and | April 2017 14.875) compulsonly eonvernble Series AS = 15 5
preference shares of INR | each
Nil {31 March 2018 17,250 and | Aprl 2017 17.250) compulsenly convertible Series A6 - 7 7
preference shares of INR | each
Nil (31 Mareh 2018 1 10,125 and | April 2017 10.125) compulsonly convertible Series A7 - 10 10
preference shares of INR | each
Nil (31 March 2018 * 385,119 and | April 2017 : 385.119) compulsorily convertible Serjes - 385 385
B preference shares of INR | each
Nil (31 March 2018 - 75,000 and | April 2017 - 75,000} compulsonly convertible Series B| . 75 75
preference shares of INR | each
Nil (31 March 2018 : 37,500 and | April 2017 37,500) compulsorily convertible Series B2 - Kt 38
preference shares of INR | each

265,135 22,214 21,040

w850
™o
%,
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14 Share capital (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
Ry in thowsandsiexcepr share daia)
As at 31 March 2018

Asat 31 March 2019

No of shares Amount No of shares Amount
Equity shares
Number of shares at the beginming of the vear 21,226,248 21,226 21,05] 53] 21,052
Add: Shares issued during the vear - - 174717 174
Add: Shares issued on account of conversion of CCPS 243,906,073 243 906
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year 265,132.32| 265,132 21,226,248 21,226
Series A Equity shares
Number of shares at the begmning and end of the yvear 2010 2 2010 2
Series B Equity shares
Number of shares at the beginnmg and end of the vear 1,000 | 1000
Series A Preference shures
Number of shares at the beginning of the year 205,882 200 205,882 206
Less: Preference shares converted to equity shares (205,882) {206) -
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year - - 205,882 206
Series Al Preference shares
Number of shares at the beginning of the vear 57,812 58 57812 58
Less: Preference shares converted to equity shares (57.812) (58) - -
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year - s 57.812 58
Series A2 Preference shares
Number of shares at the beginning of the vear 57,962 58 57962 5%
Less: Preference shares converted to equity shares (37,962) (58) - -
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year - - 57.962 58
Series A3 Preference shares
Number of shares at the beginning of the vear 90,581 9] 90,581 91
Less Preference shares converted to equity shares (90,381 (91) - -
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the VT - - 90,581 9|
Series A4 Preference shares
Number of shares at the beginming of the vear 32,004 A2 32,094 32
Less: Preference shares converted 1o equity shares (32,004} 132) - -
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the vear - - 32.094 32
Series AS Preference shares
Number of shares at the beginning of the year 14,875 15 14,875 |5
Less: Preference shares converted to equity shares (14,875) (15) -
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the vear - - 14,875 |5
Series A6 Preference shares
Number of shares at the beginning of the vear 17.250 7 17,250 17
Less: Preference shares converted to equity shares (17,250) (17) - -
Nuniber of shares outstanding at the end of the year - - 17,250 17
Series AT Preference shares
Number of shares at the beginning of the year 10,125 10 10,125 10
Less: Preference shares converted to equity shares (1(},125) (10} - -
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year = - 10,125 [11]
Series B Preference shares
Number of shares at the beginning of the vear 385,119 385 385,119 i3
Less: Preference shares converted 1o equity shares (385,119) (385) - .
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year - - 385,119 385
Series BI Preference shares
Number of shares at the beginning of the vear 75,000 75 75.000 75
Less Preference shares converted to equity shares (73.000) (7%) = :
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year - - 75,000 75
Series B2 Preference shares
Number of shares al the beginning of the vear 37500 iR 37500 RHS
Less. Preference shares converted to equity shares (37,500} (38)
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year - - 37,500 38




Aujas Networks Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 (continued)

14 Share capital (continued)

(¢) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

(d

(e

The Company has three classes of equity shares namely Equity Shares. Series A Equitv Shares and Series B Equity Shares. All equity shares rank
equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company’s residual assets. The equity shares are entitled 1o receive dividend as declared from time
to time subject to payment of dividend to preference shareholders. Series B equity shares carry a voting right of 77,121 votes per share. The voting
rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands) are in proportion 1o iis share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company Voting
rights cannot be exercised n respect of shares on which any call or other sums presently payable have not been pmd. Failure 1o pay any amount
called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of the shares,

On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled 10 receive the residual assets of the Company, remaming after
distribution of all preferential amounts in proporion to the number of equity shares held

Rights attached to the preference shares:
The fully and mandatorily convertible Series A, A1, A2, A3, Ad. AS. AG. AT and B, B and B2 preference shares carry a fixed preferential dividend
of higher of 0.1% or pro-rate dividend declared and payable on equity shares of the Company on a fully dilited basis

The holders of Seres A, Ai. A2, A3, Ad and A5 shall have the fight 1o convert their preference shares into equity shares of the Company at any
time. The number of equity shares issuable pursuant to converston of Series A preference shares shall be in the ratia of 1 201 and for Series Al A2
A3, Ad and AS preference shares in the ratio of 1 279 based on the pre-money valuation of the Company in accordance with terms of ssue

The holders of Series A6, A7 and B shall have the right to convert their preference shares into equity shares of the Company at any nme. The number
of equity shares issuable pursuant to conversion ratio of Series A6, A7 and B preference shares will be based on the following conditions -

1) In the event the pre money valuation of the Company is INR 1,045,800.00 calculated as per the terms of the agreement the conversion for all
series B preference shares will take place based on pre money valuation of INR 1,045,800.00,

2) In the event the pre money valuation of the Company is less than INR 1,045,800.00, then the Company will be required 1o achieve a cumulative
12 months revenue target as agreed with the investor and the conversion for all series B preference shares will take place based on pre money
valuation of INR 1,045,800.00

The holders of Series Bi and B2 shall have the right to convert their preference shares into equity shares of the Company at any time The number of
equity shares issuable pursuant to conversion of Series Bl and B2 preference shares shall be in the ratio of 1216 44

Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of a class of shares

Name of the shareholder As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018 Asat | April 2017
o of holding No of shares "% of holding No of shares Y ol holding No of shares

Equity shares

Mr. Simivas Rao 3 18% 8.423.307 39 68% 8.423.307 40.01% 8423307
Mr. Sameer Shelke | B1% 4 785810 22 54% 4785810 22.73% 4785810
Mr. Navin Kotian 0.90% 2,391,900 11.27% 2,391,900 11 36% 2,391,900
Founders trust 0.97% 2,573,403 12:12% 2,573,403 12.22% 2,573,403
Aujas ESOP trust*# 1.07% 2,832 291 13 34% 2,832,291 13 45% 2.832.29|

Series A Equity shares
IDG Ventures India | LLC 100.00% 2,010 100 (00 2010 100 00 2,010

Series b Equity shares
IVYCAP Ventures 50.00% S00 50.00% 500 50.00% 500
RVCF 50.00% 500 50.00% 500 50.00% 500
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 (continued)

14 Share capital (continued)

(e} Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of a class of shares (contd)

Name of the shareholder As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018 Asat | April 2017
Y of holding  Noofshares % of holding  No of shares % of holding No of shares

Preference shares

Compulsorily convertible Series A

Preference shares

1DG Ventures India | LLC 0.00% - 100 00%, 205,882 1040 .00%, 205,882
Compulsorily convertible Series Al

Preference shares

IDG Ventures India | LLC 0 00%, . 100.00%
Compulsorily convertible Series A2

Preference shares

IDG Ventures Indha | LLC 0. 00% - 100.00% 57,962 100 00% 57.962
Compulsorily convertible Series A3

Preference shares

IDG Ventures India | LLC 0.00% - 84 38% 70,428 B4 38 76,428
Mr Srinivas Rao 0 00% - 15.62% 14,153 15.62% 14,153
Compulsorily convertible Series A4

Preference shares

IDG Ventures India | LLC 0.00% - 100.00% 32,094 100.00% 32,094
Compulsorily convertible Series AS

Preference shares

IDG Ventures India | LLC 0.00% + 100.00% 13,750 100, 008y 13.750
Compulsorily convertible Series A6

Preference shares

i
-4
o
1

1 00 00% 57,812

IDG Ventures India | LLC 0 00% - 100.00% 17,250 100 (0% 17.250
Compulsorily convertible Series A7

Preference shares

IDG Ventures India | LLC 0.00% - 100 00% 10,125 100.00% 10,125

Compulsorily convertible Series B
Preference shares

IVYCAP Ventures 0.00% - 48.69% 187,497 48.69%, 187,497
RVCF 0.00% - 48 69% 187,497 48 69% 187,497
Compulsorily convertible Series Bl

Preference shires

IVYCAP Ventures 0004, = 30,00 37,500 S0 00, 37500
RVCF 0.00%%, - S0 00%, 37,500 30.00% 37.500
Compulsorily convertible Series B2

Preference shares

Technology Venture Fund 0.00% = 100 00%% 37,500 100 D08 i

=

L300
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14 Share capital (continued)

() There has been no bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period of five years
immediately preceding the balance sheet date

(2) Shares reserved for issue under options and convertible preference shares

As al As at

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Under Employee Stock Option Scheme | - 116,021
Under Employee Stock Option Scheme 11 - 270,194
Under Employee Stock Option Scheme LI - 12,170,430
Under Employee Stock Option Scheme IV - 2,718,825
Compulsorily convertible Series A preference shares . 41,382,282
Compulsorily convertible Series Al preference shares - 10,124,548
Compulsorily convertible Seres A2 preference shares - 16,1 T1398
Compulsorily convertible Series A3 preference shares - 25272099
Compulsorily convertible Series A4 preference shares - £.954.226
Compulsorily convertible Series A5 preference shares - 4,150,125
Compulsorily convertible Series B preference shares - 16,233,000
Compulsorily convertible Series B2 preference shares . 8.1106.500

*#2le number of shares 1o be 1ssued on conversion 1s gontmgent upon achievement of
certain condinons

15 Other equity

s i thousands
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Securities premium

Al the commencement of the year 722.246 722,007
Add: Addition during the year - 179
Less - On conversion of preference share to equity shares (242.921) -

Iransfer from employee stock option - 60
At the end of the year 479,325 122,246

Share based payment reserve

At the commencement of the year 4,737 2,13
Add: Employee compensation expense for the year (refer note 33} 6,175 2.084
Less. Exercise of options by emplovees (3,864) (6(0)
At the end of the year T.048 4,737

Deficit (debit balance in statement of profit and loss)

Al the commencement of the year 1427,746) (435.846)
Add: Net (loss) / profit for the year (27,768) 8100
At the end of the year (455,514) (427,746)

Other items of other comprehensive income
(i) Remeasurements of defined benefit plan actuarial gains/ (losses)

Al the commencement of the year (1.889) (933)
Add: Addition during the vear 1,422 (936)
At the end of the year (467) (1,889)

30,392 297,348

Securities premium:
Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares by the Company. The reserve can be utilised i accordance with the
provision of Section 32(2) of Companies Act, 2013

Employee stock options outstanding:
The share options outstanding account 1s used to recognise the grant date fair value of aptions issued to employees under employee stock option
plan

Actuarial gain / (loss):
Remeasurements of defined benefit hability (asset) comprises actyanial gams and losses and return on plan assets (excluding interest income)
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Nan-current borrowings

fes in thonsands

Particulurs

Asat
31 March 2019

Asat
31 March 2018

Asal
| April 2017

Secured
Term loan

Froin Bank 838 929 1.505
Loan from holding company, NSE IT Lid 52,000 - =
52,838 929 1,505

Terms and repay ment:

Term loan from Dhanlakshmi Bank: INR 2,300,000 taken during the previous year It is repayable in 29 monthly instalments from the reporting
date. Interest is 10.85% p.a, (ie. MCLR + 0.45% fixed, present MCLR being 10.40) with annual reset. Secured via hypothecation of brand new

Tovota Innova Crysta.

Loan from NSE 1T Lud

The Company has entered into loan agreement w ith its holding company for s 120,000 thousand OfF this sanctioned amount. Rs $2.000 thousand

was received by the Company on 22 March 2019 The loun 1s repayable on 31 March

published by SBI + (1.5%

Nun-current provisions

2021 and carmes an interest rate of 12 months MCLR as

Hxon Hhonsands

Particulars

As al
31 March 2019

As at
31 Murch 2018

As it
| April 2007

Pravision for employes benefits

= Gratuity {refer note 37) 6,423 2,704 4.391
6,423 2,704 1,391
Trade payables
s o thosareds
Particulars As ut Asat As at

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

I April 2007

Dues to micro. small and medium enterpnises (refer note 32)

27,516

Dues to others 27,270 18,366
27,270 27,516 18,366
Other current financial liabilities
fex in sy
Particulars Asut Asat Asat
31 March 2019 31 Murch 2018 1 April 2017
Current matunties of term loan (refer note 16) 1489 576 517
Bank overdraft® . Y374
Capital creditors 2965 1683 2%
4,454 1,259 10,119
Current provisions
Wi thowsards
Particulurs As at \s at Asal

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

| April 2017

Pravision for employee benefits

- Gratwity (refer note 37) 384 4,066 199
- Compensated absences 4.703 544 448
5,089 4,610 647

Other current liabilities
Wy o thonsandy
Particulars As ut Asat Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Lineamed revenue 8150 4,496 7 iR6
Statutory dues payable 11.453 0,509 4,695
Acerued salaries and benefits 39.814 36,620 31,507
Accrued expenses 27.127 23989 25.078
86,544 75,614 68,400
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22 Revenue from operations
Hs i thousands

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Sale of security management services 925436 850,053
Sale of traded products 17,730 40136
943,186 890,189

Effective | April 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115, Revenue from contracts with Customers, using the cumulative catch-up
transition method, applied to contracts that were not completed as of 1 April 2018 In accordance with the cumulative catch-up
transition method, the comparatives have not been retrospectively adjusted. The following 1s a summary of new and / or revised
significant accounting policies related to revenue recognition. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 was insignificant.

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those products or services

Arrangement with customer for project revenue services are either on a fixed-price or time and material basis

Revenue on time-and-material contracts are recognized as the related services are per formed and revenue from the end of the last
invoicing to the reporting date is recognized as unbilled revenue. Revenue from fixed-price, lixed-time frame contracts, where the
performance obligations are satisfied over time and where there 1S no uncertainty as 1o measurement or collectabihity of consideration.
is recognized as per the percentage-of-completion method When there 15 uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate collectability.
revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved Ihe percentage of completion is computed based on outpul
methad (i.e surveys of performance ull date) that faithtully depicts entity's complete satistaction of the performance obligation The
output method provides a basis of direct measurements of the value to the customer of the goods or services transterred to date
relative to remaining goods or services promised under the contract,

Revenues in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets (which we refer to as unbilled revenue) while invoicing in excess of
revenues are classified as contract labilities (which we refer to as unearned revenues).

Deferred costs are costs ineurred to fulfill a contract which are recognized as assets and shall be amortized on a systematic basis that 1s
consistent with the transfer to the customer of goods or service to which the cost relates

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions. deletions or changes are approved either to the contract scope or contract
price. The accounting for modifications of contracts involves assessing whether the services added to an existing contract are distinet
and whether the pricing is at the standalone selling price. Services added that are not distinct are aceounted for on a cumulative catch-
up basis, while those that are distinct are accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract, if the additional services are priced
at the standalone selling price. or as a termination of the existing contract and creation of a new contract if not priced at the standalone
selling price

Disaggregation of revenue
The table below presents disageregated revenues from contracts with custamers for the year ended 31 March 20149 by geography for
revenue from sale of services

For the year ended 31

Revenue by geography NMarch 2019

India 399461
us 349 371
Middle East 194,355
Total 943,187
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22 Revenue from operations {cantinued)

Trade receivables and contract balances

The Company classifies the right to consideration exchange for deliverables as either a receivable or as unbilled revenue
A receivable 1s a right to consideration that 15 unconditional upon passage of ume Revenue for time-and-material contracts are

recognized as related service are performed Revenues in excess of billings is recorded as unbilled revenue

financial asset For these cases as right to consideration is unconditional upon passage of time.

and 1s classified as a

Revenue recognition for fixed-price contracts is based on percentage-of-completion method. Invoicing to the clients 1s based on
milestanes as defined in the contract, This would result in the timing of revenue recognition being different from the timing of billing
the customers. Unbilled revenue for fixed-price contracs 1s classified as a Financial asset for these cases as right to consideration 1s

unconditional upon passage of time

Contract Balances

For the year ended 31

March 2019

Trade Receivables
Unbilled Revenue
Unearned Revenue

169,897
110,761
8.130

Invoicing in excess ol earnings are classi fied as unearned revenue
Trade recervable and unbilled revenues are presented net of impairment in the Balance Sheet

During the year ended 31 March 2019. the Company recognized revenue of Rs 4.496 thousand arising from opening unearned revenue

asof | April 2018

Performance obligations and remaining performance obligations

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price vet to recogmized as at the
end of the reporting period and an explanation as o w hen the Company expects o recognize these amounts 0 revenue Applying the
practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related disclosures
for contracts where the revenue recognized corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity's performance completed
to date. typically those contracts where mvoicing s on time-and-material basis Remaining performance obligation estimates are
subjeet to change and are aftected by several factors, including terminations. changes in the scope of contracts, periadie revalidations,

adjustment for revenue that has not materialized and adjustments for currency

The impact on account of applying the erstwhile Ind AS 18, Revenue instead of Ind AS 115, Revenue from contract with Customers

on the financials results of the Company for the vear ended and as at 31 March 2019 is insignificant

2

L

Other income

Rs in thousands

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Interest income 967 1,306
Interest income on refund of income tax - 5217
Profit on sale of plant and equipment 8 677
Dividend income from mutual fund investments 195 -
Net gain on foreign currency transactions 887 -
Miscellaneous income 1.892 1,792
3,949 8,992

24 Employee benefits expense

Rs i thousands

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Salaries. wages and bonus 638,939 382,239
Contribution to provident and other funds 12,912 11,176
Employee stock compensation expenses (refer note 33) 6,175 2.084
Staff welfare expenses 2318 2.627
Staff recruitment 8.599 4914
668,943 603,040
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25 Finance costs

2

(=

27

28 Auditor's remuneration (included in legal and professional charges and exc

Ry i thousands

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Interest expense 670 119
Others - 13

670 1,132
Depreciation and amortization expense

Rs i thousands

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment {refer note 4) 6,267 5.677
Amartization of intangible assets (refer note 5) 249 245
6,516 54922

Other expenses

Rs in thouscamds

Particulars

For the vear ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Rent (refer note 38) 19.596 17.219
Legal and professional charges 27.572 21.470
Travelling and conveyance B8.851 99,401
Net loss on foreign currency transactions - 3.025
Office expenses 6.776 5,384
Bank charges 1.320 1,231
Insurance 4.353 2923
Power and fuel 2,304 1.945
Repairs and maintenance

- plant and machinery - -

- Others 706 1,420
Recruitment and training charges - -
Software expenses 3.961 6,530
Advertising ard sales promotion 19,884 10,026
Communication 1.672 11,900
Printing and stationary 406 615
Provision for doubtful debts 714 152
Rates and taxes 5.409 1.882
Miscellaneous expenses 5,831 1.283

197,355 187,026

ludes service tax)

Ry in thousands

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the vear ended
31 Murch 2018

As auditor

- for statutory audit 2,650 1,700

- for other services 150
Reimbursement of expenses 100 40
2,900 1,740
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29 Income Ly

(a) Amounts recognised in profit or loss:

(b)

(c

Fox o ihesusands

Particulars For the year ended — For the year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
{Loss) . Profit before tax (27,768 00) 8100
Estimated tax at Indian tax rate of 26.00% (31 March 2018; 30,90%) (7,220) 2.503
Losses on which no deferred tax 15 created 7220 (2.303)

Income tax expense reporied in the statement of profit or !P_SS - »

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect af the following items, because it 1s not probable that future taxable profit will be av ailable
against which the Company ean use the benefits therefrom

W an thessarnicds

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Carry forward of business losses 242,231 215.883
Potential tux benefit @ 26.00% (31 March 2018: 30.90%) 62,980 56,708
Carry forward of unabsorbed depreciation 13,156 7,224
Porential tax benefit @ 26 00% (31 March 2018 30 90%) 4,065 2232

The Company las non-current lax assets of Rs 46,399 thousand and Rs 56,358 thousand as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 respectively These
assels relate 10 tax deducted at source which are recoverable from the Governmeni ol India
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30 There are no contingent liabilities and commitments for the current year ended 31 March 2019 and previous year ended 31 March 2018

31 Tax litigations

In the vear 2014-15, the Company had received a notice dated 26 August 2014 from the Commuissioner of Income-Tax (TDS) ["CIT] for the
assessment years 2013-2014 and 2014-2015 under section 2761 read with section 278E of the Income Tax Act. 1961 for delaved rennttance of
tax deducted at source for dues arising in those years The Company has filed an application for compunding of oftence before Chief
Commissioner of Income-tax ("TDS") [FCCIT'| 10 drop the proceedings and compound the offence. Management believes that this will lead to
probable outflow of resources of the Company and has recorded a provision of INR 2.870.043 owards compounding charges The Management
believes that the ultimate outcome of these proceedings will not have any other impact on the Company's financial position and results of
operations

The company had received a show cause notice from service tax department on 20th October 2013 demanding service tax on various grounds
for the pericd covering April 2010 1o Sept 2014, The Manag t has recorded a provision of Rs 2100 thousands towards non payment of
service 1ax on the value claimed as exempied services during the period June 2010 to Sept 2013 without documentry evidence which s the
Managment's best estimate of the possible outflow of resources

The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and his adequately provided for where provisions as required
Additionally the Company is also involved in other disputes, lawsuits and claims, including commercial matters, which arise from time 1o time
in the ordinary course of business. The Company believes that ther are no such pending matters that are expected to have any matenally adverse
effect on 1ts financial position.

32 Micro and small enterprises

The Ministry of Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the
Micro and Small Enterprises should mention 1 their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated
after filing of the Memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure m respect of the amounts pavable to such enterprises as at 31 March 2019 (31
March 2018 Nil: | April 2017 Nil) has been made in the financial statements based on information receved and available with the Company

T'he Company has not received any claim for mterest from any suppher under the said Act Further 1n view of the Management, the impact of
interest, if any. that may be payvable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is not expecied 0 be material

I i thensands
Particulars As at As at As at
31 Mareh 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017

The principal amount and the terest dug thereon remaiming unpad to

any supplier as at the end of each accounting year.

(a) (1) Principal - - -
() Interest - - -

the Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along

with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
(1) Interest - - -
(11} Payment - & -

(¢) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in o £ -

making payment (which have been pad but beyond the appointed day

during the year) but withou adding the nterest specified under the

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the = ¥ =

year

succeeding vears, until such date when the imterest dues above are - - s

uctually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a

deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006

* No interest has been paid by the Company durmg the year
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33  Share-based payments

A. Deseription of share-based payment arrangements

The Company has following stock aption plans
a) Scheme | ¢) Scheme 3
b) Scheme 2 d) Scheme 4
The salient features of these plans are as follows

Particulars Scheme | Scheme 2 Scheme 3 Scheme 4
Year of approval 20069-10 2010-11 2040-11 2013-14

50 % on 01 June 50 % on 01 June Based on individual
Vesting conditions ik s Various sexboanpan)

0% on 01 June 50 % on 01 June ' performance

2019 2019
Exercise period Upto 30 June|  Upto 30 June 2019 : c No limit
3019 Vanous
Administration ESOP Commitieg ESOP Committee] ESOP Commitlee ESOP Commuttee
B. Measurement of fair values
The inputs used in the measurement of the grant date fair values of the plan are as follows:
For options granted in the finaneial year ended
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Grant date 28-Jan-18 13-Jul-17 I-Apr-16 15-0ct-15
Market price 3.69 369 369 360
Exercise price I 369 360 369
Expected term (years) | year 5 months 4 years 4 years d years
Fair value of share price at grant date 28 094 094 094
Expected price volatility of shares 0.01% 0.01% 001% 0.01%
Expected dividend yield 0% %% (%% (1"
Risk free interest rate 7.79% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%

- The expected volatility is a measure of the amount by which a price is expected to fluctuate during a period. The measure of volaulity used in

option pricing models is the annualised standard deviation of the
- As per Ind AS 102, the risk-free interest rate is the implied vield currently av
currency the exercise price is expressed, with a remaining term equal to the

remaining confractual life and taking into account the effects of expected early exercise)

- The expected tenm of an option 1§ the length of the

C. Reconciliation of outstanding share option

The movement 1n the options under Scheme 1, Scheme

period over which the option 15 expected to be unexercised

2 and Scheme 3 during the year ended 31 March 2019 is set out below:

continuously compounded rates of return on the share over a penod of ime
ailable on zero-coupon government issues of the country In W hose
expected term of the option being valued (based on the uption's

Particulars

Scheme 1

Scheme 2

Scheme 3

Scheme 4

116,021

270,164

12,170,430 2

718,825

Options o ding at the beginning of the year

Granted during the year

Options exercised during the year

Opuions forfeited/lapsed during the year

116,021

12,170430 2

718,825

Options outstanding at the end of the year

Options exercisable at the end of the year

Weighted average exercise price (Rs)

3.29

340

Weighted average remaining contractual life (years)

The mavement in the options under Scheme

1. Seheme 2 and Scheme 3 during the vear ended 31 March 2018 15 set oul below

Particulars Scheme | Scheme 2 Scheme 3 Scheme 4 ]

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 257,051 544,164 10,979,430 2,793,542
Granted during the year 116021 270,194 3.820,430 -

Opuions exercised duning the vear 100,000 74,717
Options forfeited/lapsed during the year 257,051 544,164 2.529.430 -

Options outstanding at the end of the vear 116,021 270,194 12,170,430 2.718,825
Options exercisable at the end of the year - - 1,933,101 2718825
Weighted average exercise price (Rs) | | 339 340
Weighted average remaining contractual hife (years) 1,35 1.25 1,74 123

During the vear ended 31 March 2019 and 31 Mareh 2018, the Company recorded an employee Slock compensalion expense of
thousand and Rs 2,084 thausand respectively in the statement of profit and loss

Rs 6,173
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 (continued)

34 Unhedged foreign currency exposure
The Company has not taken any hedging instruments to hedge the foreign currency exposure_Foreign currency denominated trade receiv ables.

) ) As at As at
_ Gl 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Trade receivables AED 1614 254.69
SAR 1,184 12 39962

SGD 1 38 2.08

USD 143138 1,559.67

Equivalent INR 118,014 67 11296251

Trade Payable AED 26.35 3o
SAR 108 94 7791

UsD 109,63 5142

Equivalent INR 10,091 12 5.262.09

Salary Payable uUsD = 3011
AED - 640 00

SAR 5% 00

Equivalent INR - 411510

Unbilled Revenue

LSD 09640 B9

Equivalent INR 68,929.50 52,594

Earnings per share (EPS)

Computation of earnings per share is as follows:

Jes tar thonsaneds

Particulars

For the vear ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Profit (loss) for the year, annbutable 1o the equity holders

Reconciliation of basic and diluted shares used in computing earnings per share —

(27.768)

8,100

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the vear ended
31 March 2018

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during for caleulanon of basic EPS

265,135,000

21,082,304

Lfpect of dilutive potential equity shares
- Employee stock option - +

- Compulsorily convertible preference shares 225,371,882
We'ghmd averape number n!‘equu\- shares outstanding during for calculation of diluted EPS 265,135,000 246,454,186

Earnings per share:

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Basic (0.10) 0.38
Diiuted (0.10) 0.03




Aujas Networks Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 (continued)

36 Related party
Related parties with whom transactions liave taken place during the year

A. Key management personnel

Executive Director M Stimivas Rao ( Resigned on 22nd March 2019)
Executive Director pattamadal Sundaram Suniyanarayanan ( Etfective 22nd March 2019)
Non Executive Director Jagannathan Ravichandran ( Effective 22nd March 2019

Muralidaran N ( Effective 22nd March 2019)

T C Meenakshi Sundaram ( Resigned on 22nd March 2014)
Sudhir Sethu ( Resigned vn 22nd March 2019)

Vikram Gupta ( Resigned on 22nd March 2019)

Chiet Executive Officer (CEO) Sameer Shelke

Chief Marketing Officer (CMO) Navinkumas § Kotian
B. Investing party in respect of which the company is an associate
NSEIT Lunited

C. The following is a summary of related party transactions
15 i thonsands
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

1. Rent Paid
- Sameer Shelke A72 402
472 402

2. Unsecured Loan received
- NSE IT Limited 52,000 .

52,000 =

3. Sule of Car
- M Srimivas Rao 1106 -

1,106

E. The following is a summary of balances payable to refated parties:
Ity in thesands
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

1. Loan repayable
- NSE IT Limited 52.000 -
2




Aujas Networks Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 {continued)

36 Related party (continued)

F. Compe ion of key m t persunnel of the Company:
By n thousands
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Short-term emplovee benefils 31.32¢ 283514
31,329 28,314

Managenal remunerations does not include gratuty and compensated absences since these have been provided based on the actuanal v aluation carmed out

for the Company as a whole

(. Terms and conditions

All outstanding balances with these related parties are priced on an arm’s length basis and are 1o be settled in cash within the credit penod allosed as per the
pulicy None of the balances 15 secured No puaraniees have been wiven on recerved duning the year The loss allowance oi loans and trude recervables
including those to subsidiaries has been computed on the basis of Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, which requires such allowance to be made even fo

loans and trade receivables considered good on the basis that credit nisk exists even though 1t may be very low
37 Gratuity and other employee benefits

a) Define contribution plan

The amount recogmised as an expense lowards contribution to provident fund and emplovee siate msurance aggrezated 1o Rs 12,911 thousand and Rs 11,175

thousand for the year ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 respectively

b) Deline benefit plan

The Company has an unfunded defined benefit gratwty plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service 15 eligible o a gratwty on
departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service The following table summarizes the components of net benefit expense
recognized in the statement of profit and loss and amounts recopnized in the balance sheet as at 31 March 2019, 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2017

¢) Statement of reconcilintion of present value of defined benefit abligations

M theniscaidly

Particulars As at Asat As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 L April 2017
Balance a1 the beginmng of the year 6,768 4,588 2,091
Benefits paid 391 |, 560 1,002
Current service cost 1340 2.507 2438
Interest cost 304 197 1oy
Remeasurements due to
change in expenence adjustment 6,387 |.800 1.259
change in demographic (7.808) 1753 1992
assumptions
changes in financial assumplions . (rn (2.299)
Balance at the end of the year 6,805 6,768 4,588
i) Net defined benefit liability
Particulars Asat As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 | April 2017
Non-current 6,423 2,704 4,391
Current 384 4.066 199
6,807 6,770 4,500

¢) Eapense recognised in the statement of profit and loss under employee benefit expenses:

By in thonsands

For the year ended

For the yvear ended

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Current service cost 1.540 2507
Interest cost S04 497

2,080 2,804
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 (continued)

37 Gratuity and other employee benefits (continued)

R ements recognised in other comprehensive income:
1 in thousandy

sl For the vear ended For the vear ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(Gamyloss from changes in demographie assumptions (7.809) (753)
(GainVloss from changes in experience adjustments 6.387 1,800
{Gainvloss from changes in financial assumptions - (L
(1,422) 936

£) Actuarial assumptions

The weighted-average assumptions used t deleiming benefit ubligations are sei oul below

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Discount rmte
Salary icrease
Attnion rate
Retirement age
Montality rate

T Tu%

1 OU%,

6l B0ty

Ol vears
LALM 2006-08

7 790,
1 D0%%

U O

38 vears
IALM 2006-08

Notes:

(1) The discount rate is based on the prevailing market vield on Government Securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of wbligations

(11) The estimate of future salary increases considered in actuanal valuation takes into account intlation, semority, promotion and other relevant factors such

as supply and demand in the employment market

hi) Sensitivity analysis

Rensonably possible changes at the reporting date o one of the relevant actuaral assumpt

defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below,

ions, holding other assumptions constant

. would have affected the

| i | Dec N As ut As at As at

mpaet e S ERARCIEERAE T 31 Mareh 2019 31 March 2018 I April 2017

Discount rate Up 100 basis point (887) (183) 1139
Pown 100 basis paint 1 08U 195 150

Salary Growth rate Up 100 basis pownt 1,045 142 128
Duwn 100 basis point (836) (158) (121)

Attrition rate Up 100 basis point EBH] 20 [
Down 100 basis pomnt (1,133 (2T (8)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result ol reasonable

changes 11 key assumptions occurring at the end of the year

i) Expected future cash flows

Particulars

Within one vear
Hetween vne o three years
Benween three to five years
ARer five years

As at As ut Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
366 2,403 1,499
330 1.714 1105
254 Sy bdo
5857 1,755 1341

The weighted average duration to the payment of these cash flows is 20 54 years asat 31 March 2019, 3.41 vears as at 31 March 2018 and 338 years as al |

Apnl 2017
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38 Leases

(i) Operating lease
Total rental expenises incurred during the year cancellable operating Jeases amounted to Rs 19,596, 16 thousands (31 March 2018 Rs 31,678 thousands)
The obligation on long term, non cancellable operation lenses payable as per rentals staled in the respective agreement are as follows

18y in ihousaindy

Particulars Ag at 31 Murch 2019 As at 31 Murch 2018
Minimum lease Minimum
payments lease
(MLF) payments
(ML)
Not later than | year 6,407 11.387

Later than | year and nut later than 5 years 13,190 20,291

More than 5 yewrs

39 Financial instruments

(a)  Accounting classification and fair value
e e dhoresaiuds

Particulars Carrying value Fuir value
Asat Level | Level 2 Level 3 T'otal
31 Muarch 2019

Financial assets/ liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - Manduatory
Investments in mutual funds 1,000 - 1,000 - 1.000

Finuncial assets measured at amortised cost:

Other financial assets 127.216 - - - -
Loans 2915

Trade receivables 169,897 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 32,868 = = z -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 15,891 = = = =
Total 349,787 - 1,000 - 1,000
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:

Borrowings 54,327 - # = -
Trade payables 27.270 - - - *
Other financial labilines 2,068 . « = .
Tutal 84,562 - - = :

The Company has not diselnsed the values for financial instruments for loans, other financial assets and Liabilities. trade recervables. trade payables. cash and
cash equivalents and bank balances uther than cash and cash equivalents because their carrying amounts are reasonably approximation of fur value

Ji ¢ theatasanicly

Currying value Fuir value
Asar Level | Level 2 Level 3 Totul
31 March 2018

Finuncial ussets/ linbilities at fuir value through profir or loss - Mandatory
Ty estisents i mutual funds 12,028 - 12,028 - 12028

Financial assers measured af amortised cost:

Loans 11,370 £ - . a
Other financial assets 102,013 - ¥ - "
Trade receivables 193,960 - E e -
Cash and cash equivalents 18.376 = - - -
Bank balances uther than cash and cash equivalents 16,800 - - -

Tutal 334,013 - 12,028 - 12,028
Financial liabilities measured ut umortised cost:

Horrowings 1,505 = . . .
Trade pavables 27.510 - - - -
Other financial liabilities 1.683 - % : =
Total 30,704 - N - -

The Company has not disclosed the farr values Tor Fimancial instruments for loans, othe finaneinl assers, trade recevables, trade pavables, cash anid cish
equivalents and bank balances other tha eash and cash equy alents because thewr Carrying anouats ae reasonably approxsnation of far value
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(b)

(e)

Measurement of fuir values

The section expl the judg t and tes made in determuning the Lur values of the financial wstruments that are

a) recognised and measured al fur value

b) measured at amortised cost and for which far values are disclosed in the financial statements

To provide an indication about the rel bility of the mpwis used in determining far value, the Company has classified is financial mstruments i1o the three levels
prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level s mentioned below

Level 1 Level | hierarchy mcludes fi 1 st measwed using quoted prices. This mcludes listed equity instruments, iraded bonds and mutual funds
that have quoted price. The faur value aof all equity instruments (including bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges s valued using the closing price as al
the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using tha closing NAV

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded u an active market (far example, traded bonds, over-the counter denvanves) is determned
using valuation techniques which maximise 1he wse of observable market data and rely as lintle as possible on emtity=speciiic estimates 1 all syzmficant wpuis
required o fur value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3 1f one or more of the significant mputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is inclided i level 3 This is the case for unlistad equity
SECUnNes, o t wderation and md fication asset included in level 3

Valuation technigue used to determine fuir value

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities 1s included ar the amount at which the 1n could be exchanged in & current transaction berween willing
parties, other than 1n a forced or hquidation sale The followng methods and assumptions wers used 10 estimate the fur values

- The fair values of the unguoted preference shares have been estimated considening a el present varlue caleulated using discount rates denned fiom gquoted
g that are traded a0 active markets. acjusted by an lhiquidiny factor

prices of government secunties with simular maturity and credi

- The fair value of obligations under finance leases is estmated by discounting future cash Nlows using rates currently available lor debt on simular terms. credin
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40

(a)

(b)

Financial instruments - risk management

The Company s activities expose it 1o the following nisks
- gredit risk

- iquadhiry risk and

- market nisk.

Risk management framework

The Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's rish management framework. The
Company's risk management policies are established 10 sdentify and analyse the nsks faced by the Company, fo set appropriate risk limits and controls and o
monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly 1o reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s
activities. The Company, through s trmming and 1 dards and p 4 aims o a disciplined and constructive conlrol environment in
which all employees understand their roles and obligations

Credit risk
Credit risk 15 the risk of financial loss to the Company if a custorier or cowmerpaty 10 a financinl instrument fails to meet s contractual obhigations, and anses
principally from the Company s receivables from customers and loans provided 1o the retated parties

The carrying of

| assets rep the 1 credit exp

Trade receivables and loans:

The Company's exposure to credit nsk 1s influenced mamly by its customers The Company has established a credit policy under whigh each new cuslomer is
analysed individually for creditworthiness before the Company's standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offeredd, The Company's review
includes external ratings, if they are available. financial statements, credit mgency information, industry iformation and 1 spate cases bank references

The Company does not have trade receivables for which no loss allowanee 1s recogmsed because o collateral
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()

Liguidity risk

Liquidity nisk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty i meeting the obligations associated with ns fnancial habilities that are setiled by deliverng
cash or another fnancial asset The Company’s approach 1o managig hquidity 1s w-ensure, as far as possible, that it will have suflicient liquidiny o meet its
liabilities when they are due. under bath normial and stressed conditions. without ineurnng unacceptable losses or nskug damage to the Compiny s reputation

Management momitors rollmg forecasts of the Company s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows The Company’s
objective is to maintain a balance in berween cash outflow and inflow Usually the excess of funds 1s invested in short term mutual funds and fixed deposits This
1 generally carried out in accordance with practice and limits set by the Company. These limits vary t take mto account the liguidity of the market in which the
Company operates

Maturities of financial liabilities

The following are the remauning contractual maturities of financial liabil at the rey p date The are wross and undiscounted contractual cash flow
As at 31 March 2019 Jes i thonsards
Particulars il
Carryiog Totul less thun 1=2 years Mare than 2 years
wmount I year k
Non-derivative financial linbilities
Loan 54,327 54327 | 48Y 52,838 =
Trade pavables 213270 27270 27.270 = -
Capital creditors 2.905 2,903 2,965 - -
54,502 84502 31,714 51,838 -
As at 31 March 2018 I inr ihinescaiids
Particulars Carryi . less thun
Y Tatal pag e 1=2 yeurs More than 2 veary
amnount 1 year
Loan 1,505 1,508 576 929 -
Trade pavables 27.510 27,516 27,516 - -
Capital creditors 1.683 1,683 1,683
30,704 30,704 29,775 929 - -
As at 1 April 2017 1y an thousands
Particulars " i
Carrying Total less than 1=2 years More than 2 years
amount I year *
Loan 2.022 2,022 517 1,505 -
Trade payables 18,3606 18,360 18,366 -
Capital Creditors 28 28 28
Bank overdralt 9.574 9,574 9.574
249,990 20000 28,483 1503
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(d)

Financial instr - risk 2 (cuntinued)
Market risk
Market risk 15 the 115k that changes i market prices. such as foreign exchange eates and interest rates and equity prices. which will affect the Company s nicome
or the value of its holdings of financial mstruments The objective of market nsk management 15 10 manage and control market fisk exposines within acceptable
parameters, while opinusing the return
i) Currency risk
The Company 15 exposed 1o currency nisk to the extent that there 15 a mismatch between the currencies in which sales and loans are denominated and the
functional currency of the Company  The functional éwrency of the Company 15 primanly INR. The currenzies i w hich these wansactions are primanly
denomumited are US dollars, Euro et
Managemen! monitors the movement in foreign currency and the Company's exposure w each of the foreign cwrency. Based on the analyses and study of
movement in foreign currency. the Company decides to exchange uis foreygn currency
Exposure tu currency risk
The summary quantitative data about the Company's exposure to currency nsk as reparted to the management af the Company 1s as follows
Kx o dhowsandy
Particulars Asat 31 March 2019
AED SAR SGD L'SD
Trade receivables o 1184 I 1.432
Trade pavables (26) (109) - (110}
Net exposure in respect of recognized assets and liabilities (1 1,078 ! 1,322
I th thonsaneds
Particulars Asat 31 March 2018
AED SANR sSGD LSD
Trade recervables 255 400 2 1,360
Trade payables (321 (T8 - (30
Salary pavable ' (401 (581 (30}
Net exposure in respect of recognized assets and liabilities (417) 204 H 1,479
s am themscindy
Particulars As at | April 20017
AED SAR SGD LS
Trade receivables 100 Tk 8 2447
Tinde payables (28) 1521 LiZ7)
Net exposure in respect of recognized assets and liabilities 8 65 8 2320

The followng significant ::r.chant-e rates have been apphed

Year-end spot rate

INR 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017

AED | 18.35 1767 1762
SAR | 18.30 1729 1726
SGD 51.00 4952 40 40
LISD 1 68 10 65 (4 (4 84

Sensitivity analysis

At bly possibl gihening (weakening) of the curo, US dollar and Yen agamst INR a1 31 March would have affected the measurement of financial
Efpect v thovsamds of INR

Particulars Profit or loss Equity, net of tax

Strengthening W eakening Strengthening Wealiening

31 March 2019

AED (1% movement) [aR.21) | 84 184y | 84

SAR (1% movement) 19673 1196 73) 190, 73 {196 73

SCGD 1% moverment | 05l 51 5] (s

USD (1% movement) Q00 28 1900 28) S 28 1900, 28}

31 March 2018

AED (1% movement) (73.68) 8 {73.08) 7368
SAR | 1% movement) 4505 (45.65) 45.65 (45.65)
SGD (1% movement) 099 (0.99) (] (0.uYy
USD ( 1% movement) 961,94 (961 94) 6194 (961.94)

i) Iuterest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of furure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes i market wterest ates The
Company's exposwe to the risk of changes in markel interest rates relaes primanly (o the Company's debt obligations with floating merest rates and
investments such risks are overseen by the Company's Chief Finance Officer as well as senior management

S5S0C/,
_,'\ ‘:;",J'
%\
| 1l
\ v
. “-
™™



Aujas Networks Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 (continued)

41 Capital munagement

For the purpose of the Company s capital managemient. capital mcludes 1ssued equity capital, share preauim and all other equity 1eserves annbutable to the
equity holders of the parent. The primany abjective af the Company s cagital management 1s 10 maxinmse the sharcholder value

The Compiity monitors capital using a ratio of net debt 10 equity For this purpose, net debt 1s defined as total liabilities, comprising vbligations under finance
leases, trade pavables and other labilines less cash and cash equivalents Equity comprises all components of equity. The Company’s net debt 1o equity ratio at
31 March 2017 was as tollows

M i thonsand

Particulars As at As at Asat

31 March 2019 31 Murch 2018 1 April 2017
Borrowings 237 1,505 2,022
Trade payables 27.270 27,510 18,366
Other payables 153.020 84,6011 83.100
Less cash and cash equivalents (32,8081 (18,376} -
Netdebt 149,749 95,250 103,494
Total equity 295,527 319,562 308961
Geuring ratio 0.51 0.30

42 Information about reportable segments
Based on the "management approach” as defined i Ind AS |08 - Uperating Segments, Managing Drector of the company have been wdentified as the Cluel
Operating Decision Maker (CODM) The Company is primarily engaged in software product development, licensing and related customisation and royaity The
sisks and returns of the Company are predonunantly determined by its principal product and the Company s curient activities fall within a single segmen
Accordingly, no further disclosures other than those already included  the financial statements e required under Indian Accounting Standard 108 - Cipeeating
Segments

(i) Geographical information
The geographic mtvrmation analyses the w oup's revenue by the Group's country of domueile and other countries In presenting the geogmphic mformation,
seument revenue has been based on the geograplic tocauon of customers

a. Revenue from operations snd Other Income Tt g thasands
Particulars Fuor the year ended Fur the year entled
31 Murch 2019 31 Murch 2013
India EPERLT 360,762
LS 340,371 346,141
Middle East 194,355 183,286
Total 943,187 890,189

Assets and liabilities used in the Companies business are not identified to any of the reportable segments. as these we used interchangeably between segments
The managenient beligves that it 15 currently not practicable 10 provide segment disclosures relating to total assets and 1 tlities since eful segreganion of
the availabie data is onerous

(ii} Information about major customers
R from one amounted to more than 10% of the total revenue amounting 1o Rs | 16,238 thousand and Rs 128,448 for the year ended 31 March
2049 and 31 March 2018 respectively

fir BS R & Associates LLP for and on behall of the Board of Direcors of
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